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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO thE MEMbCTS Of MADURAIMUNICIPAL WASTE PROCESSING CoMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED,

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

we have audited the standalone financiat statements of 
^,iADUR.,A| 

MUNlclpAL wAsTE
PROCESSING COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Compdny"), which comprise the batance
sheet as at 31st March 2020, and the statement of Profit and Loss (inctuding Other
Comprehensive Income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash ftows for the
year then ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting poticies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the standatone financial statements,,).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the exptanations given to
US, the aforesaid standatone financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (,.lnd AS,') and
other accounting principtes generatty accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at March 31, 2A20, the loss and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash
ftows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standatone financial statements in accordance with theStandards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Or|. ."rponsibitities
under those Standards are further described in the'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit ofthe Standatone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of thecompany in accordance with the code of Ethics issued by the Institute of chartered
Accountants of lndia (lCAl) together with the independence requirements that are retevant toour audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rutesmade thereunder and we have futfitted our other ethical, iesponsibititiei in accordance withthese requirements and the lcAl's code of Ethics. we betieve that the audit evidence we haveobtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on thestandatone financiaI statements.



Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report
Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and
Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibitity
Report, Corporate Governance and Sharehotder's lnformation, but does not inctude the
standatone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financiat statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conctusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financiat statements, our responsibitity is to
read the other in-formation and, in doing so, consider whether the other informa"tion is

materiatly inconsistent with the standatone financial statements or our knowtedge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materiatty misstated.

lf, based on the work we have performed, we conctude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsibte for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these standatone financial statements that give a

true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance (Changes in Equity), total
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash ftows of the Company in accordance with
the Ind AS and other accounting principles generatly accepted in India.

This responsibitity atso includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and apptication of appropriate
accounting poticies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

design, imptementation and maintenance of adequate internat financiat controts, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and compteteness of the accounting records,
relevant tn the nrenaratinn anrl nrescntafinn nf the standalnne finanrial ctatpmpnt< thaf oive

a true and fair view and are free from materiat misstatement. whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financiat statements, management is responsibte for assessing the
Company's abitity to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicabte, matters retated to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting untess management either
intends to tiquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no reatistic atternative but to
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The Board of Directors are responsibte for overseeing the Company,s financial reportingprocess.

Auditor,s Responsibi lity

our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standatone financialstatetrtents as a whoie are iree fronr rnaterial rrrisstatement, wirether cjue to fraucj o' error,and to issue an auditor's report that inctud"r our ofinon. Reasonaute asiuiance is a high tevetof assurance' but is not a guarantee that un urdlt conducted in accordance with sAs wittalways detect a materiat miistatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud orerror and are considered materiat if, indivioralt/oiln-tn" uggr"gii",-iney couto reasonabtybe expected to inftuence the economic decisions of users tal<en on the basis of thesestandatone financiat statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professionat judgment and maintainprofessional skepticism throughout the audii. we ario: 
-

' ldentify and assess the risks of materiat misstatement of the standatone financiatstatements' whether due to fraud or llor: design unJplrrorm audit procedures responsive tothose risks' and obtain audit evidence that is srintlenf ano appropriate to provide a basis forour opinion' The risk of not detecting a material misstatement r.esutting from fraud is higherthan for one resulting from e!'!"o!', as fraud *i/-,nootve col[usion, .forgery, intentionatomissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internat controt.

' obtain an understanding of internal financiat controts retevant to the audit in order todesign audit procedures that a;e apfropriate in the circumstances. under section 143(3)(i) ofthe Act' we are atso responsible'for expressing our opinion on whetheiin" corpany hasadequate interna[ financiat controts system in ptace and the operating effectiveness of suchcontrols.

' Evatuate the appropriateness 
.of accounting poticies used and the reasonabteness ofaccounting estimates and retated disctosures r;J;iy ;anagement.

' conctude on the appropriatene.s: of management's use of the going concern basis ofaccounting and' based on the audit evidence ootiin"o,'*n"ff'"r a matJria[-uncertainty existsretated to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company,s abitity tocontinue as a going concern. lf we conctude inut u materiat uncertainty exists, we arerequired to c!'a'r" attenticn in cur aucitor''s !'epc!'t tc tne retatec ciscl.osur-es in the standalonefinanciat statements or, if such disctosures' are rniolquate, to modify our opinion. ourconctusions are based on the audit evidence obiain"Jrp to the date of olr auoitor,s report.However' future events or conditions may cause th" corpuny to cease to continue as a goingconcern.

' Evatuate the overa[l presentation, structure and content of the standatone financiatstatements' inctuding the disctosures, and wheth", thu standatone financiat statementsrepresent the uncieriying transactions anci events in a manner that achieves tair presentation.
Materiatity is the magnitude of misstatements in the standatone financiat statements that,individuattv or in aggregate, maket it pioouui; 

ilii;n;Lonomic decisions or a reasonaory



knowtedgeabte user of the financial statements may be inftuenced. we consider quantitativemateriatity and quatitative factors. in (i). ptannln! th" ,.op" of our audit work and inevatuating the results of our work; uiri'tiii lo'uuutuute the unu.t-or any identifiedmisstatements in the financial statements.

we communicate with.those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, theptanned scope and timing of the alolt and ignincaniiudit findings, inctuding any significantdeficiencies in internat ccntrot that we rdentriy du4;; cur. audit.

we also provide those. charged with governance with a statement that we have comptied withrelevant ethicat requirements regarling ino"p"no"nle-,'una to communicate with them attretationships and other matters thlt may reasonabty be ihought to near on our independence,and where applicabte, retated safeguards.

Emphasis of lrriatters

We draw your attention to the fottowing:

The company incurred a net toss of Rs. 2,40,62,350/- during the year ended 31,t March 2020and the accumutated losses incurred by the company is Rs. 19,61 ,13,g42/ - as on that date. Asstated in Note 2'16, these events or conditions, indicate that a material uncertainty existsthat may cast significant coubt on the ccmpany's abrtity tc continue as a going concern.However' the management is strongty of the view that the arbitration proceedings woutd bein favorabte to the company's view point, thereafter the company woutd augment financesand pursue other infrastructure projects in the near to medium term. Hence, themanagement, in spite of materiat uncertainties leading to significant doubts, is of the viewthat the going concern assumption is appropriate.

To note number 5 of the standalone financial statement with regard to the recognition ofreceivable unitateratty at book value of fixed assets on the date of transfer of possession ofproject/ptant to Madurai city Municipat corporation. The consideration receivabte forhandover of the project/ptant is subject to the final order of Arbitrator and confirmation ofbatance from Madurai City Municipat Corporation.

The standatone financiat statement with regard to btocking of bank accounts of the companyand considering the secured loan as non-performing asset by the tending bank (State Bank ofIndia)' Accordingty, the tending bank has not chafteo the interest on secured loan for theperiod 31't March 2016 to 31't March 2020. How"uJr, on the basis of prudence and accruatprinciptes the company votuntarity accounted the interest amounting to Rs. g,69,77,630/-.

Our report is not quatified in respect of this matter.
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Report on Other Legaland Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. we have sought and obtained atl the information and exptanations which to the best of
our knowtedge and betief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

h in nllr nnininn n!'nnF!'hnnks nf acccltnt.as rFlllrircr.l hrr larer hrrra hoon lranf hrr thor tr, vrv. evv.1r w_i qLLv-ui iL qJ i gvuii 
=u u_t iqii i iqlg L'c=i i r\LF;L L.ji L; i=

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books

c. the Batance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss inctuding other comprehensive
income, the statement of change in equity and the statement of Cash ftows deatt with
by this report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements compty with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with Rute 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rutes, 2015.

e. on the basis of written representations received from the directors of the company as
on 31't March 2020, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors
is disqualified as on 31" March 2020, from being appointed as a director in terms of
section 164(2) of the Act.

f. with respect to the adequacy of the internal financiat controts over the financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controts, refer our
separate report in Annexure'A'. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internat financiat controts over
financial reporting.

g. With respect to the other matters to be inctuded in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rutes, 2014, (as amended), in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the exptanations given to
us:

i. As detailed in Note 3 and 7 to the standalone financial statements, the
Company in view of material non-comptiances and breach of contract by
Madurai City Municipal Corporation with respect to the project attotted to the
company, the company had filed for mandatory arbitration by nominating the
arbitrator. Consequent to this the arbitration proceedings are in progress as on
date. The impact of these pending litigations is not ascertainabte as on date.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts inctuding derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeabte tosses.

iii. There are no items which were required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.



2' As required by the companies (Auditor's Report) order, 2016 (..the order,,) issued by thecentrat Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in theAnnexure 'B' a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order.

For G.L.KOTHARf & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firrn's Registration iio. : AAi+455

\ ^ht
CA G.L.KOTHARI
Proprietor
Membership No.: 025481 ,1,"

Place: Bangatore ' n'.

Date: 24th JuIy 2020
UDIN : 2002548 1 MAAAVZBZ}



Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors, Report

(Refer to in Paragraph 1(f) under "Report on other Legar and Regulatory Requirements,,section of our report to the members of MADuRAI MUNtctpAL wAsrE pRocEsstNc
COMPANY PR|VATE L|M|TED of even date)

Report on the lnterna! Financia! controls under clause (i) of sub-section -? of sectio n 1.43of the Companies Act,2O13 (..the Act,,)

we have audited the internat financiat controts over financiat reporting of lvlADUMlMUNICIPAL wAsTE PRocEsslNG COMPANY PRIVATE L|M|TED ("the Company,,) as of 31,tMarch 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the standatone financiat statements of theCompany for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internat Financial controls

The company's management is responsibte for estabtishing and maintaining internal financiatcontrots based on the internat contro[ over financiut ."i*un;;ffi;'"r,uo,trn"o by thecompany considering the essential components of internal controt stated in the GuidanceNote on Audit of Internat Financiat controts over Financiat Reporting issued by the lnstitute ofchartered A'ccountants of lndia ('lc.A!'). These responsibitities inctude the design,imptementation and maintenance of adequate internat financiat controts that were operatingeffectivety for ensuring the orderty and efficient conduct of its business, inctuding adherenceto company's poticies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of fraudsand errors' the accuracy and compteteness of the accounting records, and the timetypreparation of reliabte financiat information, as required under the companies Act, 2013.

Auciitors' Responsibi iity

our responsibitity is to express an opinion on the company's internal financiat controts overfinancial reporting based on our audit. we conducted our audit in accordance with theGuidance Note on Audit of Internal Financiat controls over Financiat Reporting (the .,Guidance
Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by lcAl and deemed to be prescribed undersection 143(10) of the companies Act, 2013, to the extent appticabte to an audit of internatfinanciat controts' both appticabte to an audit of Internal Financiat controls and, both issuedby the Institute of chartered Accountants of India. Those standards and the Guidance Noterequire that we compty with ethical requirements and ptan and perform the audit to obtainreasonable assurance about whether adequate internat financiat controts over financialreporting was estabtished and maintained and if such controts operated effectivety in attmateriat respects.

our audit invotves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of theinternal financiat controts system over financiat reporting and their operating effectiveness.our audit of internat financiat controts over financial reporting inctuded obtaining an
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understanding of internal financial controts over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evatuating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
standatone financiat statements. whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audlt evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropr^iate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controts system over
financiaI reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonabfe assurance regarciing ihe reiiabiiity of financial reporiing anci ihe preparation of
standatone financial statements for externat purposes in accordance with generalty accepted
accounting principtes. A company's internal financial contro[ over financial reporting inctudes
those poticies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonabte detait, accuratety and fairty reftect the transactions and dispositions of the assets

of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary
to permit preparation of standatone financial statements in accordance with generatty
accepted accounting principtes, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made onty in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timety detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that coutd have a

materia[ effect on the standatone financia[ statements.

Inherent Limitatlons of !nterna! Financia! Controls over Financia! Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
inctuding the possibitity of cottusion or improper management override of controls, materiat
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evatuation of the internal financial controls over financiat reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conciitions, or that ihe ciegree of compliance with the
poticies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

ln our opinion, the Company has, in all materiat respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financiat controts over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at 31" March 2020, based on the internat controt over
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financia[ reporting criteria estabtished by the company considering the essential componentsof internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internat Financial controts overFinanciat Reporting issued by the Institute of chartered Accountants of India.

For G.L.KOTH-a.R-! & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 0O144SS

rl
lt, i., .
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CA G.L.KOTHARI
Proprietor
Membership No.: 025491

Ptace: Bangatore
Date: 24tn JuIy 2020
U Dl N : 20025481 AAA/diV2BZ}



Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors' Report

Referred to in paragraph 2 under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements'

Section of our report to the members of tvtADUMl MUNICIPAL WASTE PROCESSING

COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED of even date.

Baseci on the auciii proceciures performeci for the purpose of reporting a irue anci fair view on

the standatone financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the
information and exptanations given to us and the books of account and other records

examined by us in the normat course of audit, we report that:

(i) In respect of company's fixed assets:

(a)The Company has maintained proper records showing futl particulars, inctuding
quantitative detaits and situation of fixed assets.

(b)The fixed assets have been physicatly verified by the management during the year and

no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification of the fixed assets is reasonabte having regard to the size of
the Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable property. Accordingly, the provisions

of ctause 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable.

The Company does not have any inventory as at the year ending 31" March 7020.
Accordingty, the provisions of ctause 3(ii) of the Order are not applicabte.

(iii) The Company- has not gi^anted any- loan, secui'ed oi' unsecui'ed io companies, fi:'ms
or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act.
Accordingty the provisions of ctauses 3(iii)(a) and 3(iii)b of order are not
appticabte.

In our opinion and according to the information and exptanations given to us, the
Company has comptied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with
r6e^6-f f n f lra la:ne anal inrractmantq rnrr{p
a gJPgLL !v Laag avqiiJ qttv ttlYgJlll19.llJ lllqvs.

(ii)

(iv)

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to
76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as

amended). Accordingty, the provisions of ctause 3(v) of the Order are not
applicable.

/.,:\ T- tL^ L^-r ^C ^.,- !,--...!^..r--^ --l L^l:^r rL^ ?^^L-^l --.'a---^-t L^-(Vi) iO ine DeSi Oi Oiji- KnOWieOge anq DealeI, Ille LeilLiclt \]uvslrrrrrsllL rrcl)
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I IUL

the



Act' in,l".:p"S!.of-company's products/services. Accordingty, the provisions ofctause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicabte.

(vii) 
ff::iot"t 

to the information and exptanations given to us, in respect of statutory

(a) The company is regutar in depositing undisputed statutory dues inctudingprovident fund, emptoyees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, servicetax' Goods and service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, vatue added tax,cess and other material statutory dues, as appticabte, with the appropriateauthorities.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payabte in respect of provident fund,Employees State Insurance, Income tax, sates tax, service tax, value AddedTax, Goods and service tax, customs duty, Excise duty cess and othermaterial statutory dues in arrears as at 31st March 2020for a period of morethan six months from the date they become payable
(c) There are no dues in respect of income-tax, sates-tax, service tax, duty ofcustoms, duty of excise and value added tax that have not been deposited withthe appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

(viii) According to the information 1!d exptanation provided to us there are no duespayabte to debenture hotders..T.h9 companv-nas defautted in repayment of loansor borrowings from any financiat instituiion i.e state aant< or lnlia amounting toRs. 21 ,49,77,630/_(lnciuding Interest oinr.C,Od, 77,630/ -,

(ix) The company did not raise any money by way of initiat pubtic offer or furtherpubtic offer (inctuding debt- instrunrenfsl i'no term tolns- ouring the year.Accorciingry, paragraph 3(ix) of the orcier iihoi'appticabie.

(x) According to the information and exptanation given to us, no materiat fraud bythe company or.on the company by iis officers or emptoyees has been noticed orreported during the course of our alOit.

(xi) In our opinion, manageriat remuneration has been paid (and)/ provided in accordancewith the i-equisite appi-ovals mandateri by the pi-ovisions of seciion ig7 of the Act readwith Schedute V to the Act.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and exptanations given to us, thecompany is not a nidhi company. Accordingty, paragraph 3(xii) of the order is notappticabte.

(xiii) Aceording to the information and explanations given to us and based on ourexamination of the records of the company, transactions with the retated partiesare in comptiance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where appticabte and



details of such transactions have been disctosed in the standatone financiat
statements as required by the appticabte Indian accounting standards.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferentiaI attotment or private placement of shares or futty or partty
convertibte debentures during the year.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingty,
paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not appticabte.

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, The Company is not required to be
registered under section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.

For G.L.KOTHARI & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 0014455

\.-T_-<' f"-

CA G.L.KOTHARI
Proprietor
Membership No.: 025481

Ptace: Bangalore
Date: 24th Juty 2020
UD! N : 2002548 1.^-4444\2829



AAADURAI MUNICIPAL WASTE PROCESSING COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31. 2O2O

The notes are an integral part of these financiat statement

Summary of Significant accounting poticies

Contigencies & Commitments

As per our Report of even date.

For 6.L.Kothari & Company
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg.No.0014455

G L Kothari
Proprietor

Membership No. 2548'l

Ptace: Bengaturu

Date: 24th Juty, 2020
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Director

DIN : 00035756

CFO

Ptace:

Date:
Bengaluru

24th Juty, 2020

(Amount in'000)

Kishore Kumar Thakur
Director
DIN : 02043302

the board
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Particulars Note No.
As at

31st March, 2020
As at

31st March, 20'19

I

JAssErs

I 

Non-current assets

l(a) Property, ptant and equipment

I

I

I 

Current assets

l(a) 
Financiat assets

| - Cash and Cash Equivatents

| 
- Otn", current financiat Assets

l(c) Current Income tax Receivabte (Net)

I

lrornl msers

I

IEQUTTY 

AND LtABtLtT|ES

I 
equity

l(a) Equity Share capital

l(b) 
other Equity

I

lTotal equity

I

lLrABrLtTtEs

I 

Non-current liabilities

| 
(a) Financiat tiabitities

l 
- Borrowings

l(b) 
Deferred tax tiabilities (Net)

I

lCrrr.nt liabitities

| (a) Financiat tiabititiest^
l- 

borrowrngs
- Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprise and smatt enterprise
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprise and
smatt enterprise

- Other current financiat tiabitities
(b) Other current liabitities

Total tiabilities
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILTIES

3

4

5

17

b

7

q

10

8

17

11

12

238.1 6

238.16

470.50

469,066.85

7,1 89.85

436.85

469,157.02

8,257.21

476,727.70 477 ,841.O7
476,727.20 478,O79.23

228,770.00

(130,546.73\
228,270.00

(106,4U.37)

97,723.27 121,785.62

43,854.50

6,561.71

39,057 .76

7,768.95
50,416.21 46,826,72

19,654..86

93,709.50

214,9n.63
745.73

8,288.49

105,542.69

195,422.76

212.95

328,587.72 309,466.89

379,003.93 356,793.61
476,777.2O 478,079.23



/{ADUMI MUNICIPAL WASTE

Statement of Profit and Loss

PROCESSING COTTiiPANY PRIVATE LlA,ttTED

for the year ended A,larch 31, 2020
'000)

For the year ended
31st March 2020

For the year ended
31st March 2019

Expenses

Finance Cost

Depreciation

Other Expenses

Total Expenses

/(loss) before exceptional items and tax from continuine

ExceptionaI ltems

Profit/(loss) before tax from continuing operations

Tax Expenses

Current tax
Deferred tax
Income Tax Expense

Profit for the year from Continuing Operations

Other Comprehensive tncome (OCl)

comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit
Re-Measurement gains on defined benefit ptans

Income Tax effect

Other Comprehensive Income for the year

Total Comprehensive Income for the year

Earnings per share - Basic and Dituted (Nominal vatue Rs. 10 per
snare )

1 1 ,7 53.35

35,613.21

1 39.89

1,269.85

31 ,230.45
1 39. B9

5.573.23

37,022.95 36,943.57

(25,269.60) ( 3 6,409.00 )

(1 ,207.241 (1,002.88)

(24,O62.351 (35,4O6.12)

(24,O62.35) (3s,406.12)

The notes are an integral part of these financial statemenr

5ummary of Significant accounting poticies

As per our Report of even date.

For G.L.Kothari & Company
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg.No.0014455

\t

G L Kothari
Proprietor

Membership No. 25481

Ptace: Eengaturu

Date: 24th Juty,2020

For and on behalf of the board

Director

DIN:00035756

Basant Kumar Jain
cF0

Place: Eengaturu

Date:24th July,2020

$tz
DeepaR Sethi

-$-r./\g
Kishore Kumar Thakur
Director

DIN:02043302



IIAOURAI AlUNICIPAL WASTE PROCESSING COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Cash flows for the year ended 3,1 st 

^{arch 
2O2O

For the year ended
31st fiarch 2020

For the year ended
3'lst i4arch 2019

flow from operating activities
Profit before tax from Continuing Operations

to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses

Liabitities No Longer Required written oacK
Loss on Sale of Asset

5undry Batance Written -off
Finance Expenses

Interest Received

Worktng capital adjustments:
(Decrease)/lncrease in Other Current financial assets
(Decrease)/lncrease in Trade payabtes

(Decrease )/lncrease in Other Current liability
(Decrease)/lncrease in Other Current financiat liabitity

lncome tax paid / (Refund)

cash flows from operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities
Interest Received

Sale of Asset

cash flows used in investjng activities

flow from financing activities
Long Term Borrowings

Short Term borrowings

Interest Paid

cash flows from/(used in) financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivatents
Cash and cash equivalents at the begjnning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note No. 5)

(25,269.601

1 39.89

64.77

1 61.88

(r 1,833

77.333.54

4,796.74

11,366.37
(35,611.21

(1s,815.24

8,288.49

534.57

in Liability arrising from Financing activities for the vear ende( 31st March 2020

Particulars 1st April 2019 Proceeds Repayment Fair Value
Changes

3'lst l,larch
2020

lorrowings - Non Current Including Current Maturities (Refer Note_ g & 12) 734,480.52 19,554.87 4,796.74 258.832.1 l
Borrowings - Current (Refef Note-9) 8,288.49 11,366.37 19,654.86

242.769,O1 30,921.24 4,796.74 278.485.99

in Liability arrising from Financing activitjes for the vear endec 31st March 2019

Particulars lst April 2018 Proceeds Repayment Fair Value
Chanoes

3 1st l4arch

2019
lorrowings - Non Current Including Current Maturities (Refer Note_g & 12) 206,999.95 23,295.81 4,184.76 234,480.52

8,288.49 8,288.49
205.999.95 3 1 .584.30 4,184.76 242.769.O1

As per our Report of even date.

For G.L,Kothari & Company

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg.No.0014455

G L Kothari
Proprietor

Membership No. 25481

Place: Bengaluru

Date: 24th JuIy,2020

For and on behatf of the board

It
- -\b--

\ \ l.--l
Nr-11-;z

Deepak Sethi
Director

DIN: 0O035756

(^'
u. -/ \\--

Kishore Kumar Thakur
Director

DIN : 02043302

Basant Kumar Jain
cFo

Place: Bengaluru

Date: 24th July, 2020



MADURAI MUNICIPAL WASTE PROCESSING COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2020

A) Equity Share Capital
(Amount in '000)

B) Other Equity

For the vear ended 31st March 2020

For the year ended 31st March 2019

Particulars As at
31st March, 2020

As at
31st March, 2019

Equity shares of Rs 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

Batance at the beginning of the reporting period

Changes in equity share capitat during the year
728,270.00 228,?70.00

Salance at the end of the reporting period 228.270.OO 228.270.OO

(Amount in '000)

Particulars Retained Earnings
Equity Component of

Preference Shares
Total

Balance as at 1st April 2018
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
Additions During the year

Total comprehensive income

(147,043.931

(24,062.-35)

(24,062.35\

40,559.55 (106,484.37)

(24,062.t5)

(24,062.35\
Balance as at 31st March 2019 (171,106.27) 40,559.55 ('t30,546.731

(Amount in'000)

Particulars Retained Earnings
Equity Component of

Preference Shares
Total

Balance as at 1st April 2018

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
Additions During the year

Total comorehensive income

(1 1 1,637.81 )

(35,406.121

(35,406.121

40,559. 55 (71,078.26)

(35,406.121

(35,406.12)

Balance as at 31st March 2019 (147 ,O43.93) 40,559.55 (1 06,484.38)

The notes are an integral part of these financial statement

As per our Report of even date.

For G.L.Kothari & Company
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg.No.0014455

(, -l--=.-
-{

G L Kothari

Proprietor

Membership No. 25481

Ptace: Bengaturu

Date: 24th Juty, 2020

For and on behalf of the board

Deepak Sethi
Director

DIN : 00035756
n

cww,
Basant Kumar Jain
cFo

Place: Bengaturu

Date: 24th Juty, 2020

N\YZ
Kishore Kumar Thakur
Director

DIN : 02043302



MADURAI MUNICIPAL WASTE PROCESSING COAAPANY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements as at 3 1 st March 2020

Company background
Madurai Municipal waste Processing company Private Limited is the subsidiary co. of the spML utitities Limited. lt is incorporared on the 16thMarch 2008 for providing waste Management services. The company's main business primarity inctude (i) cottection, segregation, andProcessing of solid waste (ii) to Dispose of Municipat Dispose (iii) Renovates, operate, Maintain Garbage Dumping centers (iv) Land Fiuing ofRemnants'Subsequent to termination of this project on the defautts of civic authorities of Madurai the company looks for arbitration awardand new projects.

Significant accounting policies

2.0 1 Basis of preparation and presentation
(a) Statement of compliance
These financiaI statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting standards (lnd AS) prescribed under sectionwith Rute 3 of the companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rutes, 2015 and retevant amendment rutes issued there after.Accounting poticies have been consistentty apptied except where a newty issued accounting standard is initiatty adoptedexisting accounting standard requires a change in the accounting poticy hitherto in use.

(b) Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention and on an accrual basis, except for the foltowing materiat itemsthat have been measured at fair vatue as required by relevant Ind AS:

i' certain financiaI assets and {iabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting poticy on financial instruments) andii. Defined benefit and other tong-term emptoyee benefits.

(c) Use of estimates and judgement
The preparation of financiat statements in conformity with Ind As requires management to make judgments, estimates and assurnptjons thataffect the application of accounting poticies and the reported amounts of assets] tiabitities, income and expenses. Actuat resutts may differfrom these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates arerecognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affecteo.

(d) Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from covlD_19 (covlD-19):
The company has considered the possibte effects that may result from the pandemic rerating to covrD - 19 on the carrying amounts of assets.In devetoping the assumptions retating to the possible future uncertainties in the gtobal economic conditions because of this pandemic, thecompany' as at the date of approvat of these financial statements has used internat and externa( sources of information. The Company hasperformed sensitivity anatysis on the assumptions used and based on current estimates expects the carrying amount of these assets wi. berecovered' The impact of covlD -19 on the company's financiat statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of approvat of thesefinanciaI statements.

(e) Current versus non-current classification
The company presents assets and tiabitities in the batance sheet based on current/ non-current ctassification. An asset ls treated as currentwhen it is:
- Expected to be realised or intended to be sotd or consumed in normaI operating cycte,- Hetd primarity for the purpose of trading,
- Expected to be reatised withjn twetve months after the reporting period, or
- cash or cash equivatent untess restricted from being exchanged or used to settle
Deriod,
Att other assets are ctassified as non-current.

A tiabitity is current when:
- lt is expected to be settted in normaI operating cycte,
- lt is hetd primarity for the purpose of trading,
- lt is due to be settted within twetve months after the reportrng period, or
- There is no unconditionat right to defer the settlement of the tiabitity for at least twetve months after the reporting period.The Company ctassifies att other tiabitities as non_current,
Deferred tax assets and tiabitities are ctassified as non-current assets and tiabitities.
The operating cycte is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their reatisation in cash and cash equivalents. TheCompany has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

2.OZ Propefty, plant and equipment.
under the previous GAAP (lndian GAAP), property, ptant and equipment were carried in the balance sheet at their carrying vatue being thecost of acquisition or construction tess accumutated depreciation.
The cost of property, plant and equipment inctudes freight, duties, taxes and other incidentat expenses retating to the acquisition andinstattation of the respective assets' The Present vatue of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is inctuded inthe cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met. Borrowing costs directly attributabte to acquisition orconstruction of those assets which necessarily take a substantiat period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized.Advance paid towards the acquisition of assets outstanding at each balance sheet are shown under capital advances. The cost of property,plant and equipment not ready for their intended use before such date, are disctosed as capitat work in progress.

113 of the Act read

or a revision to an

a tiabitity for at least twetve months after the reportinq



MADURAI AAUNICIPAL WASTE PROCESSING COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements as at 31st ,ilarch 2O2O

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value:
The method of depreciation adopted and estimated usefut life of fixed assets is enumerated below:

Asset Description Method Useful life adopted Useful Life as Der

Schedule ll to the
Companies Act, 2013

End user devices, such as, desktops, taptops, eti, 51 4

SLM

sL ,t

5Lt

3 years

1 0 years

5 years

8 Years

3 years

1 0 years

5 years

8 Years

Furniture and fittings

Office equipments

Vehicles

The manaqement has identified usefut tife of the assets (tangibte), based on the tife as prescribed in schedule ll to the companies Act, 2011.Further the residual vatue is is estimated to be 5% of cost of asset.

2.03 lmpairment of non-financial assets
The company assesses at each batance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset or a group of assets comprising a cash-generating unit may be impaired. lf any such indication exists, or when annuat impairment testing for an asset is required, the companyestimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset,s or cash-generating unit,s (cGU) fair vatue
tess costs of disposat and its vatue in use. Recoverabte amount is determined for a-n individuat asset, untess ihu urr"t does not generate cashinftows that are [argely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. when the carrying amount of an asset or cGU exceeds itsrecoverabte amount' the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverabte amount.
In assessing vatue in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present vatue using a pre-tax discount rate that reftectscurrent market assessments of the time vatue of money and the risks specific to the asset. tn determining fair arue tess costs of disposat,recent market transactions are taken into account. lf no such transactions can be identified, an ppropriate valuation modet is used. Thesecalcutations are corroborated by valuation muttiptes, quoted share prices for pubticty traded companies or other availabte fair vatueindicators.

The Company bases its impairment catcutation on detailed budgets and forecast catcutations, which are prepared separatety for each of thecGUs to which the individual assets are attocated. These budgets and forecast catcutations generalty cover a period of five years. For tongerpefiods' a long-term growth rate is catcutated and apptied to project future cash ftows after the fifth year. To estimate cash ftow projections
beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Group extrapo(ates cash ftow projections in the budget using a steady ordectining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long,term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity opeiates, or for the market in which theasset is used.

For assets exctuding goodwitt, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previousryrecognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. lf such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset,s or cGU,srecoverab(e amount' A previousty recognised impairment loss is reversed onty if there has been a change in the assumptjons used todetermine the asset's recoverabte amount since the last impairment loss was reiognised. The reversal is timiied so that the carrying amountof the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying uro*t thut woutd have been determined, net of depreciatjon,had no impairment toss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversat is recognised in the statement ot profit or loss untess theasset is carried at a revatued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

2.04 Revenuerecognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probabte that the economic benefits witt ftow to the company and the revenue can be retiably
measured' regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair vatue of the consideratlon received or receivabte,
taking into account contractualty defined terms of payment, net of taxes or duties cottected on behatf of the government. Further, The
company uses significant judgments white determining the transaction price aIocated to performance obtigations .
The specific recognition criteria described betow must atso be met before revenue is recoenised.

Other income
Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (ElR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash paymentsor receipts over the expected tife of the financial instrument or a shorter period, wnere appropriate, to the gross carryrng amount ot thefinanciat asset or to the amortised cost of a financial tiabitity. when catcutating the effective interest rate, the group estrmates the expectedcash flows by considering att the contractual terms of the financiar instrumentlfor exampte, prepayment, exten;ion, catt and simitar options)but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is inctuded in finance income in the statement of profit and toss.

Dividends
Revenue is recognised when the company's right to receive the payment is estabrished, which is genera[y when sharehotders approve thedividend.

/'t-
i-.".,"

,?-lrJ
" .t

r : 'tr,
' l- r*' '..' " ..:

\ I . .. .'-ili,:}--

",t.;ii:l-.'1- 
.

,{'.1::,-,; 
"

/ ,:-r t-'
I :'{
; r.1
'i:j 1r ' !



MADURAI MUNICIPAL WASTE PROCESSING COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements as at 31st March 2020

2.05 Leases

The Company evatuates if an arrangement quatifies to be a tease as per the requirements of Ind As 116. ldentification of a lease requiressignificant judgment' The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term (inctuding anticipated renewats) and the applicabte
otscount rate,

The company determines the lease term as the non-cancettabte period of a tease, together with both periods covered by an option to extendthe lease if the company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to terminate the tease if the
Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option, In assessing whether the Company is reasonabty certain to exercise an option to
extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers att retevant facts and circumstances that create an economic
incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend the tease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the tease. The company
revises the tease term if there is a change in the non-canceltabte period of a lease.

The discount rate is generalty based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evatuated or for a portfotio of teases with
simitar characteristics.

2.06 Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financiat asset of one entity and a financial tiabitity or equity instrument of another
entity.

A Financial Assets
a) Classification
The company classifies its financial assets in the fottowing measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at fair vatue (either through other comprehensive income, or through
profit or toss), and

- those measured at amortised cost,
The ctassification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractuat terms of the cash ftows.

For assets measured at fair vatue, gains and tosses witt either be recorded in profit or toss or other comprehensive income. For investments jn
debt instruments, this witt depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, this wi[
depend on whether the company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initiat recognition to account for the equity investment atfair vatue through other comprehensive income,

b) Initial recognition and measurement
Att financial assets are recognised initiatty at fair vatue ptus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or toss,
transaction costs that are attributabte to the acquisition of the financiat asset. Purchases or sales of financiat assets that require delivery of
assets within a time frame estabtished by regutation or convention in the market ptace (regutar way trades) are recognised on the trade date,i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or setl the asset.

c) Subsequent measurement
Financial assets carried at amortised cost: A financiat assets is measured at amortised cost if it is hetd within a business modet whoseobjective is to hotd asset in order to cottect contractual cash ftows and the contractual cash terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash ftows that are sotely payments of principat and interest on the principat amount outstanding. Interest income from thesefinanciat assets is accounted in profit or loss using the effective interest rate method. lmpairment losses, fore-x gain / toss and gain / loss onderecognition of financiat asset in this category is recognised in profit or toss.

FinanciaI assets at fair value throuqh other comprehensive income (FWocl]: A financiat asset is measured at FVToct, if it is hetd withing abusiness model whose objective is achieved by both from coltection of contractual cash flows and se[ing the financiat assets, where theassets' cash flows represent sotely payments of principat and interest. Further equity instruments where the company has made anirrevocable etection based on its business modet, to classify as instruments measured at FVTocl, are measured subsequentty at fair vatue
through other comprehensive income,
Debt instruments - Movements in the carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive income (ocl), except for the recognition ofimpairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit and loss. when the financjat
asset is derecognised, the cumutative gain or loss previousty recognised in ocl is reclassified from equity to profjt or toss and recognised.Interest income from these financiat assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method.
Equity instruments - Movements in the carrying amount are taken to ocl and there is no subsequent rectassification of fair value gains and
losses to profit or [oss, Dividend from such investments are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value throuqh profit or loss (FVTPL): A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categorjes aresubsequently fair vatued through profit or toss. Att gains and tosses are recognised in profit or [oss.

a/



MADURAI MUNICIPAL WASTE PROCESSING COAAPANY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements as at 31st March 2OZO

d) lmpairment of financial assets
The company assesses on a forward tooking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost and FVTocl
debt instruments' The impairment methodology apptied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 34
detaits how the company determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the company appties the simptified approach specified by Ind AS 109 Financial tnstruments, which requires expected
tifetime losses to be recognised from initiat recognition of the receivabtes.

e) Derecognition of financial assets

A financiaI asset is primarily derecognised when:
- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
- The comPany has transferred its rights to receive cash ftows from the asset or has assumed an obtigation to pay the received cash ftows in
futt without material detay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the company has transferred substantjalty att
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has neither transferred nor retained substantiatty att the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass.through arrangement, it evatuates
if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantialty att of the
risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the company's continuing invotvement. In that case, the company also recognises an associated tiabitity. The transferred asset and the
associated tiability are measured on a basis that reftects the rights and obligations that the company has retained.

B Financial liabilities
a) Classification

The company ctassifies its financiaI tiabitities in the fottowing measurement categories:
- those to be measured subsequently at fair vatue through profit or toss, and
- those measured at amortised cost.
The ctassification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractuat terms of the cash ftows.

b) Initiat recognition and measurement
The company recognises financial tiabitities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Att financiat tiabitities
are recognized at fair value on initial recognition. Transaction costs that are directly attributabte to the issue of financial tiabitities, that are
not at fair value through profit or [oss, are reduced from the fair value on initiat recognition. Transaction costs that are directty attrrbutabte
to the issue of financial tiabitities at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or [oss.

c) Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financiaI tiabitities depends on their ctassification, as described oerow:
Amortised cost: After initiat recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequentty measured at amortised cost using the
Effective interest rate (ElR) method. Gains and tosses are recognised in profit or toss when the tiabitities are derecognised as wetI as through
the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integraI part of the
ElR. The EIR amortisation is inctuded as finance costs in the statement of profit and toss,

Financial tiabitities at fair vaIue throuqh profit or toss: Financial tiabitities at fair vatue through profit or loss inctude financiat tiabitities hetd
for trading and financial tiabitities designated upon initial recognition as at fair vatue through profit or toss. Financial tiabitities are ctassified
as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category atso inctudes derivative fjnancjat
instruments entered into by the company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge retationships as defined by Ind AS 109.
Separated embedded derivatives are atso ctassified as hetd for trading untess they are designated as effective hedging instruments,
Gains or tosses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or toss.

Financial tiabitities designated upon initiat recognition at fair vatue through profit or loss are designated as such at the initiat date of
recognition, and onty if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For tiabitities designated as FWPL, fair vatue gains/ losses attributable ro
changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCl. These gains/ toss are not subsequently transferred to Statement of profit and Loss. However,
the company may transfer the cumutative gain or loss within equity. Atl other changes in fair value of such tiabitity are recognised in the
statement of profit or [oss. The company has not designated any financiat tiabitity as at fair vatue through profit and toss.

Derecognition of financial Liabilities
A financiat tiabitity is derecognised when the obtigation under the tiabitity is discharged or cancetted or expires. When an existing financial
tiability is reptaced by another from the same lender on substantiatty different terms, or the terms of an existing tiabitity are substantia[y
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the originat tiabitity and the recognition of a new tiabitity. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or [oss.

j'J-7 '1rd



A.iADURAI MUNICIPAL WASTE PROCESSING COA,IPANY PRIVATE LIMITEDNotes to financial statemenrs as at 31st t{arch ZO2O

C Financial guarantee contracts
The fair va(ue of financial guarantees is determined as the present value of the difference in net cash ftows between the contractua{
payments under tl
pavabre to. ,n,rol.LTrli::fiil #"i:r:ivments 

that *""'ili 
'"tru"d without the suarantee o.iiu ur,',nu,ua amount that wourd be

(i) as Guarantor
Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financiat tiabitity at the time the guarantee is issued. The tiabitity is initia[y measured ar:iln'i;"':ff:ffiH:yr:,.:t]jri:tJ:il: ti-u u'o,n, determined in accordance with Ind AS 10e and thJ amount initiauy recognised ress
Where guarantees
contributions .", .[i;:1i:"J.t:;",.iTriltl1:?if$fril':;It* are provided ror no compensation, the rair varues are accounted ror as

(ii) as Beneficiary

i:?;:T::ffi:1ffi;:TT:,:TJ":',",t;:TjffJ:";fi:jasser at rhe time the suarantee is taken. rhe asset is initia*y measured at rair
Where guarantees il
for as contributio.rffi':::ti;::':;;#t*":fff:'"s are provided bv group companies for no compensarion, the fair varues are accounted

D Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabitities are offset and the net amount is reported in the batance sheet where there is a tega'y enforceabre right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an int-"ntion to settte on a net basis or reatise the asset and settte the riabitity simuttaneously. The
lega[y enforceable r
or derauu, 

'"-,""".J*i.t#fiilHilil:'::il;::J:tiir"""J"'#s:namu't 
ue Jnrorceabre in tne normJ'io-u.se or uusiness uno in tn" 

"u"ni
2.07 Borrowings

Borrowings are initiatty recognised at fair vatue, net of transaction costs incurred._Bsrrowine; are subsequentry measured at amortised cost.
Any difference between the proceeds t*t oiit""tt.,ton costs) ."a tn"-r"o"rpt,:n:loun_t is recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective i"**rir"iili. Fees paid on il.r" 

"r,.uririr-"nt,of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the
loan to the extent that it is probabte tnat sote o|- att of the facitity wiiL u" Jr.*. down. In this case, thu ru" i, deterred untit the draw down;:"T:;",liJh:ff[\,'ffff1".il:il"T,:::'"i:ii:ni*:l;jlirul"*nll?:X#,be drawn down, ,he ree is capi,arised as a

Borrowings are removed from the batance sheet *hul lh: obligation specified jn the contract is discharged, cancelred or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of a financiat (iabitity that nu, u"un extinguished or transfe;ed to another party and the
consideration paid' inctuding any non-cash assets transferreo o,. ti.6iti,i", 

"rJ;;;, o recognised in profit or toss as other gains/(tosses).

Borrowings are classified as current tiabitities untess the company has an unconditionat right to defer settlement of the tiabitity for at teast 12
months after the reporting period' where t''".."'Ju. o'"u.n of a materiat provision of a tong-term toan arrangement on or before the end of
the reporting period with the effect tn"t i'''" ri"iit", becomes payabre on a"runo on the reporting aate, ihe enrrty does not classify the::l':;l;:#:'"","j:it.n:#:;:ffi!;".J; reporting period and berore the approvar or ,r.,J ,,nu*iur-,,,tements ror issue, not ro

2.08 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directf
,i'" ,o g-"i,"ui;;;l'i'i:::f::T::J"":i:,:'.',:'::;t 

i::;".:T:?lil ff:i::iTfljH:::,;ixltrffHffi:11:1'j:illix!5Tiljperiod in which they occur' Borrowing to*' t;*iri of interest .ra orrr"," .*, ihat an entity incurs in connectron with the borrowing of
funds' Borrowing cost atso includes u"thungu airrerences to the extent ,."grrd"d ;r;n adjustment to the borrowing cosrs.

2.09 Taxes

Current income tax
current income tax assetsand tiabitities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. Theff"::Ti::iil"ffi:;::":;"#J:?:nni*::l*:':*"; #;;""i1,iJ,,u",'.,, enacted, at rhe report,ns date in the countries'current income tax retating to items *.ognit"o o'i'ide profit or loss is recognised.outside profit or toss (either in other comprehensive
Income or in equity)' tii:,:l-,t* items aie 

'etognis"o 
in corretation to tne-unJerrying transaction ertner in ocr or directty in equiry.ffli::;:?:ffi'::5:iffiill,:Tff:ffn:i"JlJ5#;';i#; ll,[".,,.xo,,,,u,ion, in *ni.n uppi,..ui",* resurations are subject

Minimum atternate tax ("lir:lTld.in 
1 Vgu,. is charged to.rhe statement of profit and toss as cuffent tax. The company recognizes MAT credit;:ilt'i::il$:Xtr'i":U;"tr^T:l;i**l"ilH;igk$f'.';"'::.*", w*( pay normar income tax durins the speciried

asser in accordance with the Guidance r"," 
". o..o,n,ing ror credit o*,ilJ," *-,"J:::;;i;:lj["f,:]::iil:1.::T::n::,,""..",H,,:lAct' 1961 ' the said asset is created ov *"v 

"r 
lr"oi,-t-o *'" ,tut"run, 

"i;;i ";;';;s and shown as .MAT credit El
revrews the 'MAT credit entitlement' u'i"t ut 

"u.i-i"porting date ani *rite, aoin the asset to the extenr .rJtliililJ';lf ;:1ffi:convincing evidence that it witt pay normal tu" o"tnr',n" specified o"r#. oJf"r*a tax asset is defined in tno as 12 to inctude the carry
forward of unused tax credits' m'qi c*Ji" 

"'" t ,ff 
"' 

or ,nrr"a iu" .r;;;; ;., are carried-forward by the company ror a specified
period of time' Accordingty' MAT credit e1t4[1t9".' 

" srouped with Deferred rax Asset lnet). lgthplglia-nce sheet.

,i 
"' 

, zz ,{'. '' " -: -"'

l,'i, ( ! i'
\\'; '"' I r'it;.'^. ,'1



/VI/ADUMI MUNICIPAL WASTE PROCESSING COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITEDNotes to financial statements as at 3 1 st March Z02O

Deferred tax

fft"il:l;1T#."'"',fi:ll;rtni:i:itJ,['j?:#?d1:orarv dirrerences between the tax bases or assets and riab'ities and their carryins
'Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for alt ti- when the deferred tax liabitity u.lru, r.ori1Lb-t9 

temporary differences, except:
combination and, at the time of thl;;.,#T,:;ff::?i:?:r;ruj*ilfi::J,J*li:lJ:;,I."saction that is not a business

,t"llH?Tffr 
taxabte temporarv difference^s-associated.with inuurtr"nii in.subsidiaries, ;il;;il interesrs in joint ventures, whenthe foreseeabte ;J;r::'t 

of the temporarv differences can be controrted and it is probable ;", ;; ;;;;;ary differences wilr not reverse jn

,X:l:::"i"1ilffi.i:i:"i::::';:::#:"X",j:i'"'ore temporarv dirrerences, the carry rorward or unuseo rax credits and any unused raxtemporarv differences, and the carrf for_.,.; ;"fi:il:jl1[['#jTn:n:H:::::1,#i,ff":.,::ff;;il;;;;:^'iJ"'Jr1"11,0,"_ when the del
transaction ,n,, ,,T:".T;;'"",::*l?,',i?"f:fl:TilT",,:Trt*:1,"";..m:#Ja"Tj[ii[,:..mm:#i#illHi:i,i::
ross;

- tn respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures,
deferred tax asset
and taxabre o..",,,l,ili'""ilil;:::!#".ffi:i1;:,,ffi:;:;:;;31;j::ijnnfg:;,A;::"J;fi"verse in the ro.ese"aore r,i,,e

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is resurricient taxabte prorit wlr be avalaJr,ei;;i;:ii:1:f#ir::Iil:j::; '"0 
reduced to the extent that it is no ronser probabre that

::#:::l'":T:,1"ff:'[:J1;;"0 are recognised to tnu u"tlnt ir';;;;;;l;'"'."jj:ft:ff';^:i',",',:?:''X*:f;X*;fn'i*
Deferred tax assets and liabitities are measured
liabititv is settteo, lasea on tax rates (una;;;;ilt,|::;I"THt:;j.?::;::::.* to appty in the year when the asset is rearised or the

Deferred tax retatina to item< r6.^^^ii.^a
equity). Deferred tug 

lo 
it"tt recognised outside profit or toss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in othx rtems are recognised in corretation to tt'" rnou.t-ving 

"l.r*,t- either in oCr or directty iJ"totill;"n"nttu" 
income or in

u'ili:i:l:iltT:"?:#ff.T""j;t,:l'iJl;'::j;::f:;,1;',",:;ffrlr;"*J:Jr:ffH:il:ffj orr curren, ,ax asse,s asajns, curren, ,ax

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combir
subsequently if newinformati". ;o;;;.,r';;':.tt""' 

but not satisfying the criteria for.separate recognition at that date, are recognisedperiod reduie goodwil rerated to,*..***i",ilfi&':Hff;:ffi:J#:fi:,*"j"ffi1ff:m'Xj:::*ised within ,n" ,".,,,!.""iacquisition date. tf I
depending on,n" p,inl,rpr'i:?Jt1#?::":i,:,""T1,':i::"T::;,:ll,::;:*l{,.,::"ffi1#,1:?:,j[J"":::.?*1il'ilT'$"',:i?"Tl:

2.10 Provisions and contingent tiabilities
Provisions are recognise'd-when the company has a present obtigation (regat or -"r^,i1:li":l as a resutt of a past event, it is probabre that an

;iJil!.:T;:lililr"u'.,ilooon'nu 
"'"'o''' i"""titl witt ue ,-ei,i,uo'to-,"ttie'ine oorigation ana a reriabie esrmate can be made or thelf the effect of the time.value of money is materiat, provisions are discounted usi

:f,:"* 
sPeciric to the tiabititv' wi'* ai'.o,ntinglr,,"a, tne increase i,li;;r;;ff*H:ijffil:U:"", ii,.lli",l[;#i,?lXrjir,;:1,.";

contingent riabilities recognised in a business combination
A contingent tiabitity recognised in a business aorulnuaton is initiatty measured at its fair vArj,a q, ,A"^^.,^the amount that wourd be recognised in ;;;il; ffi il:'ffi::fl:1li:::.::::,:T 11t1e-. 

suusecuentry, it ,s measured at the higher orappropriate' cumurative amortisation ,"."r"i,;;;; ";'ill1::ilfiffi1lilffi?;:m:ln#i ,n','u,,, recognised r",,, ,r,*

2.11 Cash and cashequivalents

;:'ffi:''i1,ilffi':::lilFiiiffilffi;:Tffi;i:ljj.:"xifrndin hand and short.term deposits with an originar maturity or three

Cash flow statement

:'i:iri::J:ffi:Xy::1#ff:i::::J:i::ffjil3;f"*0, 
net prorit/ (ross) berore tax is adjusted ror rhe errects or transactions or a non.activities of the company are segregated, 

rure cash receipts or payments. The cash rto*r r.o. op"rutr:ng, investing and financine

6'ffit"_l;,,i.ri \ t"

flii Itl-'l. ;.
\0.,^'i*, .,t,:;

'..".'.'",..,,,.

a: .':,



MADURAI AAUNICIPAL WASTE PROCESSING COAAPANY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements as at 31st ,{arch 2OZO

2.12 Convertible Non cumulative preference shares
convertibte preference shares are separated into tiabitity and equity components based on the terms of the contract.

on issuance of the convertible preference shares, the fair vatue of the tiabitity component is determined using a market rate for anequivalent non-convertible instrument' This amount is ctassified as a financiat tiabitity measured at amortised cost (net of transaction costs)untit it is extinguished on conversion or redemption. The remainder or the pioceeds is attocated to the converslon option thac is recognisedand included in equity since conversion option meets Ind As 32 criteria for fixed to fixed crassification. Transacron costs are deducted fromequity' net of associated income tax' The carrying amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in subsequenr years.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the tiabitity and equity components of the convertible preference shares based on the a[ocatjonof proceeds to the tiability and equity components when the instruments are initialty recognised.

2. 1 3 Cash dividend and non-cash distribution to equity holders of the parent
The company recognises a tiabitity to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity horders of the parent when the distrjbutron js authorisedand the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the company. ls per ttre corporate taws in India, a distribution is authorised when it isapproved by the sharehorders. A corresponding amount is recognised directty in equity.

|il;:t' 
distributions are measured at the fair vatue of the assets to b" dirtribrt"d with fair vatue re-measurement recognised directty in

upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference between the carrying amount of the tiabirity and the carrying amount of the assetsdistributed is recognised in the statement of profit and [oss.

2,14 Earnings per share
The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit/ (toss) attributable to owner,s of the company for the year by theweighted average number of equity shares outstanding during reporting p"rioi. 

-

The number of shares used in computing dituted earnings/ (toss) per share comprises the weighted average shares considered for deriving
:iffJ['lt;lJHjffi:::: t"d atso the weishted average number of equitv shares which .orrd huu" beln issued on the conversron of ari

Ditutive potentiat equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the reporting date, untess they have been issued at a later date.
i:r:"#:!|.'Jrt"1||,;fiilj:" 

per share' ontv potential equitv sharei that are dilutive and which either reduces earninss per share or increase

2.15 Segment reporting
Based on the "management approach" as defined in Ind AS '108 - operating segments, the chief operatjng Decision Maker evatuates thecompany performance and atlocates resources based on an anatysis or uuriorr-p".rormance indicators by business seqments.

2.16 GOING CONCERN ASSUMPTION

During the financiat year 2015-16 the company' in.view of materiat non comptiances and breach of contract by Madurai city Municipatcorporation with respect to the project attottei to the company, decided to go for termination of project as per the terms of contract andgone for mandatory arbitration by nominating the arbitrator. Pursuant to this an arbitration pannel has been constituted, before which thecompany has made a claim for termination of project, recovery of pending receivabte etc, After due arbitration proceedings, the company gotthe award in its favour on 13th March 2019 but the company has fited the ippeat before Hon'bte High court of LJorcate at Madras, Chennai, asthe award dated 13-03-2019 is required to be set aside on the ground thai tne Award contains decision on the matters beyond the scope ofsubmissions to arbitration, decissions which are beyond the terms of contract.

The company as detailed above had made a ctaim for termination of project, recovery of pending receivabte, compensation for toss of projectetc" In view of that' the management strongly betieve that the tegai proceedings woutd be in favourabte to rne company,s view point,thereafter the company woutd augment finances and pursue other infrastructure projects in the near to medium term, Hence, themanagement' in spite of materiat uncertainties teading to significant doubts, is of the view that the going concern assumption is appropriate.
As the company has no commercial operation, the covid 19 as such has no imptication on the estimations and financiats.

2,1 7 Recent Accounting pronouncements

ilH[]"""t;:J[ffii: iln:Ji:i')iotifies 
new standard or amendmenrs to the existing standards. rhere is no such notification which wourd



MADURAI MUNICIPAL WASTE PROCESSING COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements as at 31st March 2020

3 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Considering there is no operations in the company, atl the assets have been disposed off during the year.

(Amount in'000)

Particulars
End user devices,

such as, desktops,
laptops, etc.

Furniture and
fixtures

Office
equipments

Vehicles TOTAL

GROSS BLOCK

As at Aprit 1,2018 17.32 31 18 50.1 5 589.92 688.57
Additions

Disposats

Exchenqe Differennce

As at March 31,2019 17.32 31.18 50.1 5 589.92 688.57
Additions

Disposats

Exchenge Differennce
17 32 31.18 50.1 5 589.92

As at March 31,2O2O

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

As at April 1,2018 16.06 21.12 26.54 246.80 3 1 0.52
Charge for the year
lmpairment
Disposats

Exchange Differennce

3.22 13.77 123 40 1 39.89

As at March 31,2019 16.05 24.35 39.81 370.21 450.42
Charge for the year
lmpairment

Disposats

Exchange Differennce
I O.Uf, 27

22

57

13.27

53.08

123.40

493.61

1 39.89

590.3 1

As at March 31,2020

NET BLOCK

As at March 31,2019 1.27 6.82 1 0.34 219.72 238.16
AsatMarch 31,2020



MADURAI MUNICIPAL WASTE PROCESSING COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements as at 31st March 2020

4 CASH AND CASH EQUTVALENTS

cash at banks earns interest at ftoating rates based on daity bank deposit rates. short-term deposits are made for varyrngperiods of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earninterest at the respective short_term deposit rates.

OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL AS5ETs

-'During the financiat year 2015-16 the company, in view of materiat non comptiances and breach of contract by Maduraicity Municipal corporation with respect to the project attotted to the company, decided to go for termination of project asper the terms of contract and gone for mandatory arbitration by nominating the arbitrator. pursuant to this an arbitrationpannel has been constituted' before which the company has made a ctaim for termination of project, recovery of pendingreceivabte etc' After due arbitration proceedings, the company got the award in its favour on 13th March 2019 but thecompany has fited the appeat before Hon'ble High court of Judicate at Madras, chennai, as the award dated .r3-03-20j9 
isrequired to be set aside on the ground that the Award contains decision on the matters beyond the scope of submissions roarbitration, decissions which are beyond the terms of contract.

Break up of financial assets carried at amortised cost

Particulars

Cash and cash t

(Amount in '000
As at

31st March. 2020
As at

31st March, 2019
Balances with banks:

On current accounts
Cash on hand

I

I

Total
I

470.27

0.23
436.59

0.26

470.s0 436.8s

I particulars

I

Unsecured considered good unl.ess stated
5ecurity Deposit

Other Receivabte *

Totat 

-

(Amount in '000)

As at
31st March, 2020

As at
3'tst March, 2019

658.06
4,68,409.79

743.22
4,69,408.79

4,69,066.85 4,69,152.02

Particulars

Cash and cash enrriv:t*

(Amount in '000
As at

3'tst March, 2020
As at

3'tst March, 2019

Other current financial assers
470.50

4,69,066.85
436.85

4,69,152.02

4,69,537.35 4,69,589.87

li .

ti,

i,t" - 'i
trO

, I .rii
i, ,"\* ,j-:
\.,

., '-' ,i,'.,.' "
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A ADURAI /ytuNlclPAL wAsrE pRocEssrNG coMpANy pRrVATE Lr/rlrrED
Notes to financial statements as at 31st lv{arch 2020

6 SHARE CAPITAL

Amount

Amount

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares
Equity shares: The company has one class of equity shares having paid-up vatue of Rs.10/- per share. Each sharehotder is etigibte for one vote pershare hetd' The company dectares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval ofthe sharehotders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of tiquidation, the equity sharehotders areetigibte to receive the remaining assets of the company after distribution of atI preferentiaI amounts. The distribution witt be in proportion to thenumber of Equity Shares hetd be the Sharehotder.

Inctuding nterest on 10 shares

Details of shares held shareholders holding more than 5% of the shares in the

* Inctuding Beneficiat Interest on 10 shares

As per the records of the company' inc(uding its register of sharehotders/members and other dectarations received from sharehotders regarorngbeneficiat interest, the above shareholding represents both tegat and beneficiat ownerships of shares.

(e) The company has not attotted any futty paid up equity shares by way of bonus shares nor has bought back any ctass of equity shares during tneperiod of five years immediatety preceding the batance sheet date nor has issued shares for consideration other than casn.

(f) There are no unpaid calts from director & officers of the company

(g) There are no buy back of shares during the year by the company.

Particu lars As at 3 1 st lvlarch 2020
UUU)

As at 31 st March 201 9
Number Amount (Rs) Number Amount (Rs)

lAuthorised

lEquity shares of Rs.10/- each
Non-cumutative Redeemabte preference Shares of Re. 1 /_ each

lssued. Subscribed & paid-up

Equity shares of Rs.10/- each, futty paid

2,28,30,000

3,67,00,000
2,28,300.00

36,700.00
2,28,30,000

2,87,51 ,000

2,28,300.00

78,751.00

5,95,30,000 2,65,000.00 5,1 5,81,000 2,57 ,O51.OO

7,28,27,000 2,28,270.00 2.,28,27,000 7,28,270.00

2,28,27,OOO 2,28,270.OO z,28,Z7,OOO 2,28,270.oo

(a) Reconciliation of number of shares

Particulars

u00)
Equity Shares I fquity Sfrares

As at 31st lv{arch 2020 As at 31 st March 201 9
Number Rs Number Rsdrolng at tne oeglnnlng ot the year 2,28,27,000 2,28,770.00 7,28,27,000 7,28.270.00

5nares Dought back during the year

thares outstanding at the end of the year 2,28,27,000 2,28,270.00 2,28,27,000 2,28,270.00

(c) 5hares held by holdi and of

Name of Shareholder and Relationship with the company
As at 31st March 2O2O As at 31st March 2019

No, of Shares

hetd
Amount No, of Shares

held Amount

neruIrg LOrnpany, 58,78,000 58,780.00 58,78,000 58,780.00
rurulilg ugtilpdily., 1,08,43,600 1,08,436.00 1,08,43,600 1,08,436.00iPML Infrastructre Limtied (Fettow subsidiary Company) 43,55,400 43,554.00 43,55,400 43,554.00

BeneficiaI
2,10,77,OOO 2,10,770.oo 7,10,77,OOO 2,10,770.Oo

As at 31st March 2020 As at 31st March 2019

SPML Infra limited
SPML Utitities Limited

Infrastructre Limtied



A4ADURAI MUNICIPAL WASTE PROCESSING COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements as at 31st March 2O2O

7 OTHER EQUITY

in 000

Nature and purpose of other reserves:

Equity Component of Financial Liability: The Company had the compound financiat jnstruments (i.e. the
Preference shares) which has been fair vatued as on trasition date and the same has been ctassified into the
equity component and the financial tiabitity based on the terms of contract with preference share hotders.
The equity component has been shown under the head other equity.

Retained Earnings: Retained Earnings comprise of the company's accumutated undistributed earninqs
([osses).

BORROWINGS

(Amount in'000)

" Securjty and repayment terms in respect of term toans from banks. Primary Security: The above Term Loan is secured by first Hypothecation charge over atl the fixed Assets
purchased out of bank finance present and future.

As per the interim orders/minutes of arbitrat tribunat dated 30th January 2016, att the fixed assets along
with project have been handed over to Madurai City Municipat Corporation with effect from 15th February
2016' However legat right in these fixed assets have not been transferred to Madurai City Municipat
Corporation. further the consideration for these assets transfer is yet to be finatised by the Arbitrators
oanne[.

Cottateral Security: Assignment of atl contract/ticenses in connection with project, negative tjen on the
shares of the company and charge on carbon credit receivabte. Second charge on the other fixed assers ano
coLlaterat security of the company given for Term Loan (first charge for the Term Loan) personal guaranree
of Mr. Sushil Kumar Sethi and Rishabh Sethi. Corporate guarantee of SPML Infra Limited and SpML Utitities
Limited.

Total loan amount 2,32,600.00 (Amount in Rs. '000), to be repaid 43 quarterty instattment atong with interest
@ 6.5% p.a., above base rate (vide letter dated 31.3.13 of SBI) starting from June, 2015 (inctuding 12
instattment during monotorium period from June 2012 to March 2015).

Particulars As at
31st March, 2020

As at
31stMarch,2019

Equity Component of Financial Liability
Opening batance

Additions

Detetions

Retained Earnings

0pening balance

(+) Net Profit/(Net Loss) For the current year

40,559.55 40,559.55

40,559.55 40,559.55

(1,47,043.93)

(24,067.35]|

(1 ,11,637 .81t
(35,406.121

|,71 ,106.27) (1,47,043.93

Total - Other equity 1,30,546.731 (1 ,06,484,37"

Particulars As at
3 1 st March, 2020

As at
31st A,larch, 2019

Secured
Term loans

from banks .

Less: Amount Disclosed under the head other current
tiabitities

Unsecured
Liabitity component of financialinstrument **

1,28,000.00

1 ,28,000.00

1,28,000.00

1,28,000.00

43,854.50 t9,057 .76

Total 43,8 54.50 39,057.76

.(1'-

{ "l'tIi.r
iL1 I\it
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l\4ADURAI /\.TUNICIPAL WASTE PROCESSING COA,IPANY PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements as at 3 1 st March 2O2O

The company has defaul.ted in repayment of its prjncipat and interest on loan.
2020 and 31st March 2019 are as fotlows:

The outstanding dues of principat and interest as at ljst March

(Amount in 000)

Particulars As at
31st March. 2020

As at
31str\,larch,2019

lnterest on loan'
Principat portion of loan

86,977.63

1,28,000.00
90,718.57

1,28,000.00

Total outstandings 2,14,977.63 2,18,718.57

'As a part of recovery process' the lender bank [state Bank of India (5Bl)] has blocked the company.s current account and atso ctassified the
loan account as Non'performing asset (NpA) and accordingty there is no interest charged by the banK.

The company has votuntarity catcutated and accounted the interest amounting to Rs. 86,927.63 (py . Rs. 90,718.57) for the period 1st March 2016
to 31st March 2020.

" 2% and 10% Non-cumulative Redeemable preference Shares

The preference shares are redeemabte whotty or partly at the mutuat consent of both the altottee as we[ the company, within a maximum
period of 20 years from the date of altotment. The preference shares shatl carry dividend @ 2% and 10% per annum until redeemed and shalt be
payabte on non'cumutative basis prior to any dividend or other distribution payabte to equity sharehotders, subject to the avaitability of adequate
distributable profits for the respective financiat vear-

The preference sharehotders shatl not be entitted to receive notice, attend and vote at general meetings of the company, except as otherwise
provided by the companies Act, 2013 whereby the hotders of such shares woutd be entitted to vote separatety as a class, i.e. with respect to
voting entitlement of preference sharehotders on matters / issues affecting substantive rights or tiabitities of preference shareholders. The
preference shareholders shatt not be entitted to bonus or right shares or participate in any profit of the company except the rjght of dividend
being attached to the preference shares. However, in the event of winding up or tiquidation of the company, the paid up amount on preference
shares witt be paid back to the preference shareholders before any payment is made to the equity sharehotders.

n4{i|-':: '

,d":1.'"'
{ ,:..f \-

i.i i r

Particulars Redeemable at No of Shares Amount
Redeemable

within maximum
of

Z% Non-cumulative Redeemabte preference Shares of Re. 1 /
3ach 49,51 ,000 45,549.20

5 years from the
date of attotment

10% Non-cumulative Redeemabte preference Shares of Re. 1 /.
each 1 1,29,00,000 1 2,900.00

20 years from the
date of attotment

1 0% Non'cumulative Redeemable preference shares of Re. 1 /
each 1 1,04,00,000 1 0,400.00

20 years from the
date of aLLotment

1 07o Non-cumutative Redeemabte preference Shares of Re. 1 /
3ach 1 77,25,000 7,725.00

20 years from the
date of attotment

2,82,51,O00 76,574.20
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9 Borrowinss

*Loan received from retated parites are repayabte on demand and interset at the rate of 12% .o.a.

TRADE PAYABLES

Terms and conditions of the above financial tiabitities:
- Trade payabtes are non-interest bearing and are normatty settted on 60-day terms
- other payabtes are non-interest bearing and have an average term of six months
- Interest payabte is normalty settted quarterty throughout the financial year
- For terms and conditions with retated parties, refer to Note 29

For exptanations on the Group's credit risk management processes, refer to Note 32.

OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(Amount in'000)

(Amount in'000)

(Amount in'000)

(Amount in'000)

(Amount in'000)

l1

Break up of financial liabitities carried at amortised cost

12 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

'i
It..

Particulars As at
3 1 st lvtarch, 2020

As at
3 1 st March, 20 1 9

Unsecured

From Retated Parties* 19,654.86 8,288.49

I otal 19,654.86 8,288.49

Particu lars As at
31st March- 20?o

As at
3 1 st lr{arch, 20'l 9

Trade Payables ;

Total outstanding dues of micro and smatt enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and smatt
enterorises 93,709.50 1,05,542.69

Total 93,709.50 1,O5,542.69

Particulars As at
31st r\{arch, 2020

As at
31st March, 2019

Current maturities of long-term borrowings
Interest accrued and due on borrowinss

1,28,000.00

86,977.63

1,28,000.00

67,472.76

otat 2,14,977.63 1,95,422.76

Particulars As at
31st March, 2020

As at
31st March, 2019

Borrowings

Interest accrued and due on borrowings
Liabitity component of financiaI instrument
Trade Payabtes

0ther current f inanciaI tiabitities

19,654.86

86,977.63

43,854.50

93,709.50
1,28,000.00

8,288.49

67,427.76
39,057 .76

1,05,542.69

1,28,000.00
Total 3,72,196.49 3 ,48,311 .71

Particulars As at
31st March, 2020

As at
31st March, 201 9

Tax Deducted at Source Pavabre 245.73 712.95

245.73 212.95

ffi: ':rl I j

tt .: : /
;.'i..\ .,.-t.i

t{*=,i4d;''
F



MADURAI MUNICIPAL WASTE PROCESSING COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ending march 31, 2020

13 OTHER INCOME

(Amount in'000)

(Amount in '000)

(Amount in'000)

(Amount in'000)

(Amount in'000)

Particulars For the year ended 31st
March 2020

For the year ended
31st Marc h 2019

lnterest received on etectricity deposit
Interest on lT Refund

Liabitities No Longer Required written back
49.35

11,704.00

56.90

477.67

Total 11,753.35 534.57

14 FINANCE COSTS

15 DEPRECIATION

16 OTHER EXPENSES

* Payment to Auditors

Particulars For the year ended 31st
March 2020

For the year ended
31st March 2019

Interest on Secured Loan

Interest on Loan

Finance cost on financial tiabitity
Interest on TDS

29,109.16

1 ,707.31
4,796.74

24,632.82

626.09

4,184.76

1,786.78

Total 35,613.21 31,230.45

Particulars For the year ended 31st
March 2020

For the year ended
31st March 2019

Depreciation on Tangibte assets 139.89 1 39.89

Total
1 39.89 1 39.89

Particulars For the year ended 31st
March 2020

For the year ended
31st March 2019

lRates & Taxes
I

lBank Charees

Payments to Auditors *

Advertisement Expense

Loss on sale of assets

Legat & Professional Fees

Travetting & Conveyance Expenses

Court Fees

Printing & Stationery
Sundry Batance w/off

1 55.53

1.30

17.70

64.77

686.80

16.93

1 00.00

64.94

161 .88

366.26

1.30

17.70

17.64

350.00

20.33

4,800.00

Total 1,269.85 5,573.23

Particulars For the year ended 31st
March 2020

For the year ended
31st March 2019

As Auditors
- Audit fees 17.70 17.70

Total 17.70 17.70
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MADUMI MUNICIPAL WASTE PROCESSING COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements as at 31st March 20.1 9

17 INCOME TAX ASSETS (NET)

i) The fotlowing table provides the details of income tax assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March
2019:

(Amount in '000)

Particulars For the year ended 31st
March 2020

For the year ended
31st March 2019

a) Income Tax Assets

b) Current Income Tax Liabilities
Net Balance

7,189.85 8,252.21

7,189.85 8,252.21

ii) The gross movement in the currebt tax asset/ ( Liability) for the years ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019
is as follows:

Particulars For the year ended 31st
March 2020

For the year ended
3 1 st March 201 9

Net current income tax asset at the beginning
Income Tax paid

Current Income tax expense
Income tax on other comprehensive income
Refund Received

Net current income tax asset at the end

8,252.2'l

1,062.36

8,246.52

5.69

7 ,189.85 4,252.21

Particulars For the year ended 31st
March 2020

For the year ended
31st March 2019

Income Tax expense in the Statement of profit and Loss
Comprises:

Current income taxes
Deferred income taxes
Income tax expenses (net)

(1,?07.24) ( 1,002.88)
(1,2O7.24) (1,002.88)

iv' Components of deferred income tax assets and tiabilities arising on account of Temporary differences are:

(Amount ln uuu)

.Considering the concept of prudence and lack of reasonabte certainity of realisation of Deferred tax Asset, the
deferred tax asset has not been recognised.

Particulars For the year ended 31st
March 2020

For the year ended
31st March 2019

lDeferred income tax liability
Timing difference on tangibte and intangibte assets
depreciation and amortisation
Timing difference on equity portion of prefernce shares
Others

Deferred income tax asset
Business Ioss/unabsorbed depreciation *

Others

[tAT Credit entitlement
Total deferred tax liabilities

6,561._71

49,357.93

(42.6e)

7,768.95

45,771.55

6,561 .71 7,768.95
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MADURAI MUNICIPAL WASTE PROCESSING COMPANy pR|VATE Ltr,^tTED
Notes to financial statements for the year ending march 31, ZOZO

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES : Rs. Nit (PY - Rs. Nit)

Capital and Other Commitments:
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for: Rs. Nit (py - Rs. Nit)

Earning Per Share

Basic EPS amounts are calcutated by dividing the profit for the year attributabte to equity hotders of the parent by the
weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Dituted EPS amounts are calcutated by dividing the profit attributabte to equity hotders of the parent (after adjusting for
interest on the convertible preference shares) by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year
ptus the weighted average number of Equity shares that woutd be issued on conversion of att the ditutive potentiat Equity
shares into Equity shares.

Basic EPS amounts are calcutated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent by the
weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Dituted EPS amounts are calcutated by dividing the profit attributabte to equity holders of the parent (after adjusting for
interest on the convertibte preference shares) by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year
plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that woutd be issued on conversion of att the ditutive potentiat Equity
shares into Equity shares.

he toltowing rettects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS comDutations:

Particulars For the year ended 31st
March 2020

For the year ended 3'1st

March 2019
Net profit avaitab[e for Equity Shareholders (24,062.35) (3s,406.1 2)
vveighted Average number of Equity shares 22,827.00 22,827.0C
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share 1.05) (1.s5)

21 Leases

The company has no lease transactons during the year.

22 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that

affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and tiabitities, and the accompanying disctosures, and the

disctosure of contingent tiabitities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates coutd resutt in outcomes that

require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or tiabitities affected in future oeriods.

Judgements: In the process of apptying the company's accounting poticies, management has made the fottowing
judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Estimates and assumptions: The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

tiabitities within the next financial year, are described betow. The company based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters avaitabte when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the
company. Such changes are reftected in the assumptions when they occur.

lmpairment of non-financial assets: lmpairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds
its recoverabte amount, which is the higher of its fair vatue less costs of disposat and its value in use. The fair value tess

costs of disposal calculation is based on avaitabte data from binding sates transactions, conducted at arm's tength, for
similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The vatue in use cal.cutatjon is
based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not inctude restructuring
activities that the company is not yet committed to or significant future investments that witt enhance the asset,s
performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as

well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most

' retevant to goodwill and other intangibtes with indefinite useful tives recognised by the company.

20
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A,IADUMI MUNICIPAL WASTE PROCESSING COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements as at 31st A,larch 2020

Taxes: Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax tosses to the extent that it is probabte that taxabl.e profit witt be
avaitable against which the losses can be utilised. significant management judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the tikety timing and the [eve[ of future taxabte profits together
with future tax ptanning strategies.

Fair vatue measurement of financiat instruments: When the fair vatues of financial assets and financial tiabitities recorded
in the batance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, the.ir fair vatue is measured using
valuation techniques including the DCF modet. The inputs to these models are taken from observabte markets where
possible' but where this is not feasibte, a degree of judgement is required in estabtishing fair vatues. Judgements inctude
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and votatitity. Changes in assumptions about these factors coutd
affect the reported fair vatue of financial instruments.

Employee Benefits: The company does not have any employees on ro[[s as at 31st March 2020 and 31st March 2019
accordingly the emptoyee benefit obtigation.

There are no MSME trade payabte at the end of the year Rs, Nit (py - Rs. Nit).

A disctosure w'ith respect to segment reporting is not appticable, since the company does not have more rnan one
reportabte segment.

Foreign Currency Earnings And Outgo Rs. Nit (py - Rs. Nit).

There are no reported foreign currency exposures that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise,
hence the disctosure of the same is not made.

CIF value of imports Rs. Nit (py - Rs. Nit).

23
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MADURAI MUNICIPAL WASTE PROCESSING COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

29 Related party Disclosures:

Information given in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard 1g on Related party Disclosures:A List of Related parties with whom transactions have taken ptace during the year:
(i) Key Management personnel:

Om prakash Sharma

(ii) Holding Company

SPML Infra Limited

(iii) Fellow Subsidiary Company
SPML Inf rastructure Limited

I Aggregate related parties disclosure:

C Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
The transactions with retated parties are made on terms equivatent to those that prevait in arm,s length transactions. outstanding batances at the year-;liJ."'iJii:""fl:]11?:T::';;",flffiiH:rj *i*:,1:::i;"*:::l;:'-b-;-: il:*-",ees provided or received ror anv rerated party receivabresor pavabtes' For the vear ended 31 March 2020, ,r'"."'p."v n., ;"; ;;;;ff:il:'ilLTi!1iJ'""J:t",:,"[T'J:: :il#,i",1[TJ;::L.,:ilTl:
f;'i'fi: li,l?;fl;Jll;lhisassessment 

l"ni"'tut"n 
"-u.h'rlnan.iat vear throush ;";";;s the rinanciar position oi the rerared party and the market in

Sl No

;

Particulars

Transactions amount during the year ended 31st rv{arch 2O2O

(Amount in

Outstanding as on 31st
March 2020

Loans &
Actvances

Paid
Finance Cost

Liabilitv no | -
longer required I In:e::st

written back I ralo

Loans & Advances
Received Debit

Balance Credit Balance

-

l rr'As at 31st March 2019
b 'e,,o.5uDStOlarV (1 1,850.91
2 ;PML Infrastructure f imited -.__---_--_.-

4,555.42 1,087.98
(626.09

10,429 .267,725.00\
'8,288.49)



MADURAI MUNICIPAL WASTE PROCESSING COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ending march 31,2OZO

30 Fair values
The carrying vatue and fair vatue of financial instrumenrs Dy category:

Assets and liabilities carried at amortised cost

(Amount '000

There are no assets and liabilities which have been carried at fair value through profit and Loss.

There are no assets and liabilities which have been carried at fair value through the other comprehenssive income.

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivabtes, trade payabtes, and other current tiabitities approximate theircarrying amounts targety due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair vatues of the unquoted equity shares have been estimated using a DcF model. The valuation requires management to make certa]nassumpt'ions about the mode[ inputs, inctuding forecast cash flows, discount rate, credit risk and votatitity. The probabitities of the vanousestimates within the range can be reasonably assessed and are used in management's estimate of fair vatue for these unquoted equrtyinvestments.

The fair values of the Group's interest-bearing borrowings and loans are determined by using DcF method using discount rate that reflects theissuer's borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. The own nonperformance risk as at 31 March 2020 was assessed to be insignificant.

Fair value hierarchy

Leve[ 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identica( assets or tiabitities
Level 2: Significant observabte inputs other than quoted prices inctuded in [eve[ 1 that are observable for the asset or tiabitity, either directty(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs for the assets or tiabitities that are not based on observabte market data (unobservable inputs).

31

Particu lars
Carrying Value Fair Value

As at
31st March, 2020

As at
31st March, 2019

As at
31st March, 2020

As at
31st March, 2019

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivatents
Other current financiaI assets

470.50

4,69,066.85
436.85

743.22
470.50

4,69,066.85
436.85

743.22

Total 4,69,s37 .35 1,180.O7 4,69,537.35 1,180.O7

Financial liabilities
Borrowings

Interest accrued and due on borrowings
Liabitity component of financiaI instrument
Trade Payabtes

0ther current financiaI tiabitity

19,654.86

86,977.63

43,854.50

93,709.50

1,28,000.00

1,36,288.49

67,422.76

39,057.76

1,05,542.69

1,28,000.00

19,654.86

86,977.63

43,854.50

93,709.50

1,28,000.00

1,36,288.49

67,422.76

5Y,U)t, /b
1,05,542.69

1,28,000.00

Total 3,72,196.48 4, /6,311 .71 3,72,196.48 4,7 6,3 1 1 71

*



MADURAI MUNICIPAL WASTE PROCESSING COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financia[ statements for the year ending march 31, ZO2O

32 Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Company's principal financial tiabitities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payabtes, and financiat
guarantee contracts. The main purpose of these financiat tiabitities is to finance the Group's operations and to provide guarantees to suppo^ *s
operations. The Group's principaI financiat assets inctude toans, trade and other receivabtes, and cash and cash equivatents that derive directtv
from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and tiquidity risk. The Company's senior management oversees the management of these rjsks.
The Company's senior management is supported by a financial risk committee that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financiat risk
governance framework for the company. The financiat risk committee provides assurance to the company's senior management that the company's
financiat risk activities are governed by appropriate po(icies and procedures and that financiat risks are identified, measured and manaeed in
accordance with the company's poticies and risk objectives.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash ftows of a financial instrument witt ftuctuate because of changes in market prices. Market
risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financiat

instruments affected by market risk inctude loans and borrowings, deposits, FWOCI investments and derivative financial instruments.

The fottowing assumptions have been made in catculating the sensitivity anatyses:

i. The sensitivity of the retevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financiat
assets and financial tiabitities hetd at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 inctuding the effect of hedge accounting.
ii. The sensitivity of equity is catcutated by considering the effect of any associated cash ftow hedges and hedges of a net investment in a subsidiary
at 31 March 2019 for the effects of the assumed changes of the underlying risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair vatue or future cash ftows of a financial instrument wit[ ftuctuate because of changes in market rnterest

rates. The company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates retates primarily to the company's long-term debt obligations with
ftoating interest rates. The company manages its interest rate risk by having a batanced portfolio of fixed and variabte rate loans and borrowrnss.

The company's poticy is to keep between 40% and 60% of its borrowings at fixed rates of interest, exctuding borrowings that retate to discontinued

operations. To manage this, the company enters into interest rate swaps, in which it agrees to exchange, at specified intervats, the difference
between fixed and variabte rate interest amounts calculated by reference to an agreed-upon notionat principat amount.

Interest rate sensitivity

The fottowing tabte demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonabty possibte change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected,
after the impact of hedge accounting. With atl other variabtes hetd constant, the company's profit before tax is affected through the impact on
floating rate borrowings, as fotlows:

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity anatysis is based on the currentty observabte market environment, showing a
significantly higher volatitity than in prior years.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty witt not meet its obtigations under a financial instrument or customer contract, teading to a financiat toss.
The company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarity trade receivabtes) and from i$jfii€iy.{6iqactivities, inctuding deposits
with banks and financial institutions and other financiat insrruments. ,{rtf** 4
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MADURAI MUNICIPAL WASTE PROCESSING COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements as at 31st March 2020

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by the Company's established policy, procedures and control retating to customer credit risk management. Credit
quatity of a customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit [imits are defined in accordance with this

assessment. Outstanding customer receivables are regularty monitored. At 31 March 2020, the company had Ni[ customer (31 March 2019: Nit

customer) who owed 100% of receivables outstandinq.

An impairment anatysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual costomer basis. The company evatuates the concentration of risk with
respect to trade receivabtes as [ow, as the the customer is Government body and operate in targety independent markets.

Liquidity risk
The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds using a tiquidity ptanning toot.

The Company's objective is to maintain a batance between continuity of funding and ftexibitity through the use of bank loans and group company

loans. The Company's poticy is that not more than 25% of borrowings shoutd mature in the next 12-month period. A[[ the borrowings are from group

companies and they are payabte on demand. As on date no [oan has been demanded for repayment, accordingty the % of borrowing to be repaid

during the year has not been provided. The company assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and conctuded it to be

medium.

The tabte betow summarises the maturity profite of the Company's financial liabitities based on contractuat undiscounted payments:

(Amount in'000)
As at 31st March 2020 On Demand Less than 3 months -ess than 3 month:

to 12 months
More than 1

year
Total

Borrowings (other than convertible preference
shares)

Interest accrued on borrowings

Liabitity component of financiaI instrument
Trade and other payabtes

0ther current financia[ [iability

19,654.86

86,977.63

93,709.50

1,28,000.00

43,854.50

19,654.86

43,854.50

93,709.50

1,28,000.00

As at 3 1 st March 201 9 On Demand Less than 3 months -ess than 3 month:
to 12 months

More than 1

year
Total

Borrowings (other than convertib[e preference
shares)

Interest accrued on borrowings

Liabitity component of financiatinstrument
Trade and other payables

Other current financial tiability

1,36,288.49

67,422.76

1,05,542.69

1,28,000.00

39,057 .76

1 36,188.49

67,477.76

39,057 .7 6

05,542.69

28,000.00

1

1

Excessive risk concentration
Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or

have economic features that woutd cause their abitity to meet contractual obtigations to be simitarly affected by changes in economic, pol'iticat or

other conditions. Concentrations indicate the re[ative sensitivity of the Company's performance to devetopments affecting a particutar industry.

ln order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Company's poticies and procedures inctude specific guidelines to focus on the maintenance

of a diversified portfotio. ldentified concentrations of credit risks are controtted and managed accordingty. Selective hedging is used within the

Group to manage risk concentrations at both the relationship and industry levels.

33 Capital management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capitat includes issued equity capitat, convertibte preference shares, share premium and

atl other equity reseryes attributable to the equity hotders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to
maximise the shareholder vatue. The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in tight of changes in economic conditions and

the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Gcompany may adjust the dividend payment to

shareholders, return capital to sharehotders or issue new shares. The company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by

total capital plus net debt. The Company's poticy is to keep the gearing ratio between 25% and 50%. The Company inctudes within net debt,

interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payabtes, less cash and cash equivatents.



MADURAI MUNICIPAL WASTE PROCESSING COAAPANY PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements as at 31st March 2020

(Amount in '000)

Particulars As at 31st
March 2020

As at
3 1 st r\,larch 201 9

Borrowings other than convertibte preference shares

Liabitity component of financiaI instrument
Trade payables

Other payables

Less: cash and cash equivatents

3,72,196.49

43,854.50

93,709.50

86,977.63
(470.501

3,48,311.70

39,057 .76

1,05,542.69

67,472.76
(436.8s)

Net Debt 5,96,267.63 5,59,898.06

Equity

other Eouitv

2,28,270.00
(1,30,546.73\

2,28,270.00
(1,06,484.38)

Caoital 97,723.27 | ,21 ,785.62
Gearins ratio 86./, 82v,

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financiat

covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financiat

covenants woutd permit the bank to immediatety ca[[ toans and borrowings. There have been breaches in the financiat covenants of Interest-

bearing loans during the year. During the year the company has not paid the interest due on borrowing amounting Rs. 86,977.63 for the penod July

2016 to March 2020 and the principte repayment due amounting to Rs. 1,28,000.00 (Amount in'000).

No changes were made in the objectives, poticies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019.
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34 The amounts and disctosures included in the financ'ial statements
necessary.
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